
 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LGES 
MEETING 

 
4.00 pm MONDAY, 12TH JULY, 2021 

 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this meeting and a separate invitation 
will be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 

above. 

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 
 

3. Update on Education Data   

 To consider the attached report.  
 

5 - 14 

4. Early Years and Flying Start Update   

 To consider the attached report. 
 

15 - 20 

5. Forward Work Programme 2021/22   

 To consider the attached report. 
 

21 - 30 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  H R Jones (Chair) 

                      S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors: H Barrett, B Carter, D Isaac and M Jones 
 
Co-optees: J Beard, C Brown, K Phelan, L Phillips, 
M Symonds, F Whitefoot and T Wilkes 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Update on Education Data 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 This report gives members an update on progress towards a local authority approach 
to accountability measures. 

 

1.2 This reports considers what performance measures will be used in the future. 
 

1.3 This report continues to demonstrate how schools, the local authority (LA) and Central 
South Consortium (CSC) will work together to demonstrate sustainable progress for all 
learners. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The content of this report to be discussed and performance information scrutinised.  
 
2.2 Scrutiny Committee Members further consider how performance of schools may be 

scrutinised in the future and what Key Performance Indicators might be appropriate.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 As previously reported a series of performance measures have been published in 
previous years which have allowed local authorities to measure outcomes against other 
local authorities and in some cases measures outcomes against similar schools. 

 
3.2 In 2018/19, changes were made to published data which removed school level data for 

Key Stage 2 & 3 and the Foundation Phase which meant year on year comparative data 
could not be made. 
 

3.3 For the last academic year and this academic year there will be published data for NEET 
figures. 

  

Date Written 21st June 2021 

Report Author Sue Walker/Betsan O’Connor 

Service Area Learning 

Committee Date 12th July 2021 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
3.4 There is limited data for Key Stage 4 – current data for Key Stage 4 indicates that across 

nearly all indicators performance at a local authority level is below national averages. 
 

 Numeracy is the strongest subject area for the local authority with only a 0.4% gap 
at A*-C from the national average. 

 The gap between the performance of pupils eligible for free school meals and those 
not eligible for free school meals at A*-C is similar to the gap across Wales. 

 Literacy at A*-C is the weakest area across the local authority with a 14.1% gap at 
A*-C from the national average. 
 

3.5 There is no performance data for Key Stages 2 & 3 or the Foundation Phase. 
 

4.0 WHAT WE HAVE DONE 

 
4.1 Meetings have been held with Headteachers, Governors, senior leaders in the Council 

as well as the joint workshop for Scrutiny members from both this committee and 
Governance Scrutiny. 
 

4.2 A summary of the finding of those meetings can be found in Appendix 1. 
 

5.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 

5.1 Whilst inspections outcomes and categorisation are in the main positive, standards at 
the end of Key Stage 4 have been erratic for the past four years and three out of the 
four secondary schools have performed below modelled outcomes in key areas 
during this time. 
 

5.2 Attendance across the County Borough is unsatisfactory which also impacts on 
attainment. 
 

5.3 Whilst permanent exclusion figures are low, there are too many young people excluded 
for a fixed term.  This does vary from school to school and impacts heavily on the 
number of learners being placed on special tuition and in Ty Dysgu. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 

6.1 With no national benchmarking figures, it is difficult to track progress against 
performance of our schools.   
 

6.2 We need to consider alternative ways of ensuring our children and young people make 
appropriate progress (see Appendix 1). 
 

6.3 We can measure exclusion figures once all learners are back in school. 
 

6.4 We can measure persistent absenteeism once all learners are back in school and Welsh 
Government set the expectation for all learners to attend with no excuse for absence. 

 

7.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 
7.1 It is the ambition of the local authority to be closer to or above the modelled outcomes 

in all performance measures by 2022, and at or above the modelled outcomes in 2024.   
  

Page 6



However, given the changes in data publication, there is no way of measuring 
performance against Welsh averages, as Welsh Government is no longer publishing 
this data.  Additionally, the collecting and publication of various measures including 
attendance data, has been suspended as a result of the Coronavirus pandemic. 
 

8.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
8.1 Roll out the progress framework of measures to schools. 

 
8.2 Develop a reporting mechanism for members to ensure they are able to understand 

progress of learners at a local authority level. 
 

8.3 Through focussing on improving teaching and learning ensure schools focus on 
improving outcomes for all children in all age phases.  This will be achieved.  The LA in 
partnership with the CSC has continued to provide effective monitoring, challenge, 
support and intervention for all schools across the Borough, which is bespoke to the 
needs of each school. 

 
8.4 Deliver on the key objectives set out within the RARS Strategy by continuing to work 

collaboratively with CSC and our key stakeholders. 
 
8.5 Continue to work with schools and Corporate Communications to promote the 

importance of attendance. 
 
8.6 Carry out a review of the School Support Service (incorporating Behaviour Support and 

Greenfield Outreach Service) to secure a robust service which support the needs of 
learners who are struggling with managing behaviour. 

 
8.7 Through clear action planning, training and support for all providers ensure Flying Start 

providers continue to strive for excellent outcomes for all children.  
 
8.8 Develop closer links with Families First to ensure parents are supported to focus on 

good attendance at school. 
 

9.0 CONTRIBUTION TO RARS 
 

9.1 This report links to the following themes and goals within the RARS strategy. 

 Partnership and Collaboration 

 Post Pandemic Recovery 

 Improving Achievement and Progression 
 

10.0 CONTRIBUTION TO OUR WELLBEING GOALS 
 
10.1 The improvement activities identified in this report directly contribute to our wellbeing 

objective: 
 

 Best Start to Life: Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped 
with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals. 

 

 
 

SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 

CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 
  Page 7



 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) 

Date 
Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

 

Page 8



Appendix 1 
CONTEXT 
Further to the Scrutiny report shared on March 15th 2021, CSCJES and the LA have worked together to 
shape and design evaluation, improvement and accountability arrangements for the local authority.  
These are in line with the principles and processes agreed at that meeting, and as set out in the report.  
These arrangements will include eight aspects, as discussed in the recent June 8th 2021 workshop for 
members.   
 
As a recap, the features of the work are as follows: 

 Conditions for Improvement, Evaluation and Accountability 
This is about the culture of the organisation – will include CSC, LA and Council corporate attitudes 
to improvement and accountability.  The promotion in the region of self-improving schools, a 
systematic LA which uses powers appropriately, a supportive region, clarity of expectation 
regarding all reforms including ALN, and competence to plan and evaluate accordingly.  

 Expectations 
These are the standards set by LA – i.e. the expectations regarding literacy, numeracy, digital 
competence, wellbeing.  These will be unique to the LA’s context but align with policy 
expectations and reform.  Recent changes to the publication of targets and pupil attainment data 
in external examination and to the categorisation of schools allow us to shape these expectations.  

 Transparency 
This is about making sure citizens and stakeholders will know what to expect at schools and 
service level.  Also, the plans in place to deliver improvement; how the LA, schools and partners 
plan to get there, and how systems for accountability and improvement and escalation work.  This 
transparency will help citizens in the LA to know and understand the Expectations, how they can 
support these expectations and contribute to the implementation arrangements.  Stakeholders 
and citizens will also know about the routines and systems which will allow them to know if 
schools and pupils are making sufficient progress.  For example, schools will share SDP online, or 
report to Governing Body. 

 Improvement 
This is the core work of the regional consortia.  How schools are supported to continually improve 
and to enhance their own improvement planning based on accurate self-evaluation.  Dependant 
on need, specific strategies are used and practised.  This will include the work of CSC, as both IPs 
and strategic team.  It will also include support from the LA for HR, Finance and buildings.  In 
particular, the combined support for Governing Bodies is especially important. 

 Monitoring 
The monitoring arrangements give LAs confidence that the Expectations are met or not.  Some 
of the monitoring arrangements are delegated to CSC – not all.  This is one of the LAs statutory 
duties.  The approach to monitoring is dependent on culture and conditions, as highlighted 
above.  Along a continuum, LAs and regions can support capacity building and self-improving 
schools or can create a top-down approach to compliance.  The approaches of the LA and region 
working together to monitor schools is key to securing appropriate accountability, timely 
intervention and should add value to schools. 

 Accountability 
Secure and confident accountability arrangements, within schools to the Governing Body and in 
the LA to Cabinet, the region to Joint Committee must be clear.  Performance management of all, 
including the Headteacher, service level performance management, Director, CSC, Democratic 
accountability – Council and Scrutiny, Governing Body – via SIP Improvement Priorities.  Any 
external Boards or inspection also here.  Joint Committee for CSC work.  

 Intervention 
Clarity on escalation arrangements, Powers of Intervention, CSC guidance and using statutory 
powers/ gaining Ministerial support for intervention.   

Page 9



 
INTRODUCTION 
This document will set out how the local authority will set out its Expectations for standards in schools. 
This means that as part of the RARS strategy, the local authority will design its own success criteria and 
set its own expectations for schools and pupils. The local authority is aware that as we shape this 
development in partnership with CSC and our schools and stakeholders that we need to make sure that 
standards are high, that expectations of pupils are at least in line with academic expectations for their 
age and include a broad range of well-being measures. 
 
As set out above, this approach aims to support the LA to develop arrangements to hold the Council and 
subsequently its Officers to account. 
 
Approaches and Engagement 
This approach has been developed with stakeholders and noted below are the formal opportunities used 
to discuss and work at detail in this paper. 

 May 17
th

 1.00-2.00pm Headteacher discussion 

 May 17
th

 4.00pm Governing Body workshop  

 May 18
th

 Leader, Chief Executive, Corporate Team in LA 

 May 27
th

 further detailed discussion with Strategic Group of Heads 

 May 27
th

 further discussion with Governing Body Chairs and Vice Chairs 

 June 7 
th

 Elected Member workshop 

 June – discussions with school leaders 

 June 30th workshop with school leaders 

 July – Scrutiny Committee 
 
Together, the LA and CSC established a working group of officers and school leaders.  This group drew 
together the feedback from Governors, wider group of school leaders, senior officers including the Chief 
Executive and in his Senior Leadership Team elected members and local authority staff. 
 
Themes from the feedback included: 

 a clear opportunity to shape a contextualised system to drive improvement where and when we 
want it locally; 

 the need to focus on schools as safe places, a haven to support learners and their families; 

 the need to focus on positives within the schools and maintain a momentum and the desire to 
get the best for citizens of Merthyr Tydfil; 

 allow pupils to develop an awareness of their local community, Wales and the world as active 
informed citizens; 

 support self-confidence, mental and physical wellbeing through oracy, literacy, numeracy, 
physical literacy and digital competence;  

 the outcomes should align to the notions embedded in the new Curriculum for Wales; 

 the strengths of building democratic accountability in from the outset and aligning to the LAs 
strategic objectives;  

 the need for a common approach across the LA to give a consistent baseline in a pupil’s early 
years of schooling and then tracking the pupil’s performance up to age 16 and beyond; 

 the need for assessments to support the learning of individuals by providing diagnostic 
information on their strengths and weaknesses; 

 assurances that data is used appropriately, and that schools are protected and safeguarded from 
use of pupil data for high stakes accountability; 

Page 10



 the need for primary and secondary schools to use the same approaches to assessment to 
improve the quality and value of information transferred between schools; 

 the need for schools to be held accountable for the progress of their learners by their GBs; and 

 ensure that the LA has high-level data to shape strategy and provide democratic accountability 
to elected members, and monitor the effectiveness of Governing Bodies in leading school 
improvement; 

 

Others felt it was appropriate to avoid shaping a local approach to support the implementation of the 
RARS and national policy incentives.  This feedback included: 

 the sense that WG would shape and dictate expectations in due course; 

 the notion that RARS does not refer to primary schools being in need of improvement; 

 the notion that many schools have individually an excellent knowledge of their own pupils 
through the strategies that are already in place;  

 schools have autonomy in how they carry out non-statutory assessment, and that 

 collaboration and mutual improvement across the LA was not a priority for all school leaders. 
 

Under the Chief Education Officer’s guidance, this working group is tasked with shaping and working 
over the coming academic year 2021-22, on building a mutually owned process, that allows the best 
practice to be identified and shared, but also challenges any perceptions which do not raise the bar for 
learners in the authority’s schools. 
 
What do we want to do?  

 establish a clear set of expectations for school in relation to pupil outcome and progress; 

 support all schools to share and use a common system and approach to implementation which 
will build trust and consistency in the validity of data;  

 It is expected that this will become a bespoke model for Merthyr and its constituent schools to 
use to raise standards and to support pupils to get the best outcomes possible. 

Why do we want to do it? 

 the local authority is aware that there are inconsistent expectations and inconsistent standards 
in schools across the authority.  In addition, the region’s work in supporting and monitoring of 
schools identified that there was good and effective practice ready to be shared.  School leaders 
have also identified that there is variation in the implementation arrangements for specific tests 
and support strategies. 

 

PRINCIPLES AND CONSIDERATIONS 
Initially the group established some core expectations and principles and relation to behaviour and how 
we wanted the set of expectations to support school improvement across the local authority. 
 

These principles are as follows: 

 broad, no single indicator; 

 promoting data sharing between schools to support learner progression; 

 protecting and safeguarding schools from use of pupil data for high stakes accountability; 

 support transition at many points; 

 collaborative and school led, cross LA approach; 

 providing quality data within schools to promote learner progression and set high aspiration; 

 allow practice to be shared and build teacher capacity and learning as we focus on Curriculum 
for Wales; 

 common understanding of what data is used for which purpose, including what data is used by 
schools, for GB reports, LA, for democratic accountability.  Clarifying the improvement, 
transparency and accountability purposes; and 

 build a picture of pupils throughout their school careers and beyond. 
Page 11



 

These principles reflect well those set out in Welsh Government's draft guidance on school 
improvement.  In addition, to these principles we also agreed a set of agreed content expectations as 
we shape the arrangements. 
 

Content 

 sets and agrees a common baseline; 

 consistency in expectation and approach across LA; 

 teaching and provision aligned to Curriculum for Wales; 

 self-evaluation and improvement focused; 

 attainment and achievement; 

 allows for effective analysis to support intervention at pupil/ teacher level and supports the 
universal provision aspect of the ALN Act; 

 diagnostic assessments and analysis which support interventions and expectations; 

 allows for tracking of attainment and progress within years, between years and between settings. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
As we shape the next stages, the following considerations will be part of the working group’s thinking. 
1. Terminology:  Standards, expectations, entitlement, aspiration,  
2. Content:  Academic, wellbeing, community based 
3. Technical:  Legal, data sharing, IT solutions, statutory duties 
4. Practice: Best practice, common systems, research and evaluation, professional learning and 

capacity building, policy and curriculum context 
5. System level benefits: 

 Pupils 
o Any system would give diagnostic feedback that would allow teachers to individualise 

learning; 
o Learners would know which areas they need to work on; 
o All learners would be treated fairly through having a common approach to assessments; and 
o When a pupil transfers between settings, teachers will have a common picture of their 

progress, thus making transition more effective and accelerating learning. 

 School 
o A common approach that is understood by all and supported by Improvement Partners; 
o Peer support through Improvement Partners identifying areas of need / good practice and 

facilitating collaborative work; 
o Improved links between primary and secondary schools; and 
o Sharing and notion of Merthyr pupil being supported by all. 

 Local authority 
o A shared set of expectations for all stakeholders, designed and shaped together; 
o the opportunity to create a framework for Merthyr that is bespoke and sector-leading; and 
o the capacity to report to Elected Members on the progress of groups of pupils across the 

Borough. 

 Region 
o A shared approach to accountability within Merthyr; 
o the opportunity to learn from and replicate the approach throughout the region. 

 
6. Cost and value for money – collaboration, existing packages and opportunities 
7. Access and communication – who will see what, when and for what purpose? 
8. Reform, rebuild, recover arrangements to support school community post Covid. 

 
  

Page 12



Plan for 2021-22 academic year 
This will be led by the ‘coalition of the willing’ working group under the joint leadership of the LA and 
CSC.  Using a collegiate capacity building approach, the aim will be, as noted earlier, to build a bespoke 
package which will include a broad range of tools/ approaches.   
 
There will be three main aspects to the plan as set out below. 

 Setting the expectation – establishing the norm, non-negotiables, shared understanding, high 
aspirations 

 Affirm – test, evaluate, analyse the information 

 Intervention – provision, support for pupils and / or teachers 
 

Specific tasks will include:  

 Teachers will work together to shape the expectations of pupils at each year group – prioritise 
Years 6/7, 2/3 

 Mapping approaches in schools and then evaluate their effectiveness by IPs – what, when, why, 
frequency 

 Agreed approaches to establish what data is used for which purpose by whom. 
 
support and understanding of schools 

 
 
   
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Early Years and Flying Start Update 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Consideration of the population trends and impact on demand for Flying Start 

provision in the context of future childcare commissioning and outreach 
arrangements. 

 
1.2 Update position on Flying Start childcare provision in the Penydarren area following 

the notice to withdraw from two existing childcare providers. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Members consider the content of the report and to note and debate the 

challenges facing the delivery of childcare within the context of the Flying Start 
programme. 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Flying Start is the Welsh Governments flagship Early Years programme for families 

with children aged under four years.  It is a geographically targeted programme aimed 
at the most deprived communities with 15 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) 
included in the programme in Merthyr Tydfil covering 41% of the 0–4 year-old 
population which equates to a cap figure of 1204. 

 
3.2 Flying Start includes the following four core entitlements: funded part time childcare 

for two to three year-olds; an enhanced health visiting service, access to parenting 
support and access to Early Language Development support.  Flying Start locally also 
offers a number of other elements in response to identified need including family 
support and targeted midwifery services. 

  

Date Written 29th June 2021 

Report Author Chris Hole/ Sarah Ostler 

Service Area Learning 

Committee Date 12th July 2021 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



3.3 It is important that the supply and demand for childcare provision is kept under review 
so that the Flying Start programme can be responsive to the needs of families whilst 
ensuring value for money.  The local authority has a statutory responsibility to produce 
a Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (CSA) every five years and the last full CSA was 
produced in 2017 with the next full assessment due in June 2022.  The assessment 
considers the supply and demand for childcare provision.  
 

3.4 Section 22 of the Childcare Act places a duty on local authorities to secure as far is 
reasonably practicable, provision of childcare that is sufficient to meet the 
requirements of parents in the area to; take up or remain in work, undertake education 
or training that could reasonably be expected to assist them to obtain work.  It is worth 
noting that the local authority is not expected to deliver the childcare directly but has 
a role in stimulating and supporting the sector to ensure sufficiency of provision. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 
4.1 Flying Start support has been delivered in Merthyr Tydfil since 2007 and has once 

again been included in the latest programme for Government.  When the programme 
expanded its reach in 2012, the commissioning model for childcare was revised.  The 
original childcare commissioning model fully funded six childcare providers to 
exclusively offer childcare for Flying Start children. The funding arrangements 
implemented at the time of the expansion established a model based on Core Flying 
Start Providers that are funded for 40% of their Care Inspectorate for Wales (CIW) 
registered places and for any additional children that attend and Approved Providers 
who are funded as and when an eligible Flying Start child attends.  However, this 
model was not applied retrospectively to the six original settings. 

 
4.2 As a result of the approach to commissioning childcare 98% of all early year’s 

providers across the County Borough can offer Flying Start places.  This approach 
supports mixed economy provision, increases the quality across the wider sector and 
allows for greater parental choice.  

 
4.3 The Flying Start programme for a number of years operated over its cap figure, due to 

the expansion, however through discussions with Welsh Government a way forward 
was secured through additional Welsh Government investment in the programme.  
The impact of this however was that there was no flexibility within the allocated 
resources to support an outreach model beyond LSOA boundaries within Flying Start.   

 
4.4 Availability of childcare during the height of the pandemic was a critical service to 

children and families.  Since the start of the pandemic in March 2020, ten providers 
remained open as hub provision offering Coronavirus Childcare Assistance Scheme 
(CSAS) funded places for children of key workers and vulnerable children.  In June 
2020, following the publishing of Protective Measures guidance for the sector, the 
majority of providers re-opened their doors and welcomed the return of all children.  
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 
 

5.1 Population trends project a decrease in birth rates with Borough wide projections 
showing a 6% decrease in the 0-3 population from 2020- 2025 with a further 3% 
reduction predicted up to 2030.  

  

Page 16



This has been reflected in the cap number in Flying Start with 1,190 allocated to a 
Flying Start Health Visitor in 2018-19, 1,152 in 2019-20 and 1,141 in 2020-21 which 
equates to a 5% reduction over three years.  It is expected that the new Childcare 
Sufficiency Assessment for 2022 will reaffirm the position and will be able to identify 
the areas of the Borough where the greatest changes are to be expected in the future.  

 
5.2 This downward trend in birth rates could eventually impact on the ability of the 

programme to reach the 1204 cap number.  Whilst the Welsh Government allow for a 
10% tolerance above or below this figure, it provides the local authority with an 
opportunity to further consider how we engage with additional children outside of the 
existing Flying Start LSOA’s.  The programme has in recent years included a small 
element of outreach capacity to enable up to 16 children living outside Flying Start 
areas to remain involved with the programme.  This has been focused on supporting 
vulnerable children who have moved outside of a Flying Start area, ensuring continuity 
for these families.   

 
5.3 It is also timely that we consider how the falling birth rates will impact on any future 

childcare commissioning arrangements to ensure that that the number of surplus 
places are minimised and value for money is achieved.  An early opportunity to review 
the childcare commissioning arrangements has arisen in the Penydarren LSOA 
because two independent childcare organisations have served notice to withdraw from 
the management and delivery of two current pre-school settings.  The existing 
providers have indicated that they intend to cease delivery from 31 December 2021.  
The two providers are funded to provide a minimum of 31 Flying Start places between 
them with additional places purchased as required by Flying Start.  Internal analysis 
work has identified that projections of eligible children in the Penydarren area show 
that by Spring term 2022, there will only be 22 Flying Start ‘childcare’ eligible children. 
It should be noted that one of the providers also accepts fee paying families within a 
mixed economy model.   

 
5.4 Discussions have been ongoing with the providers to secure a way forward and to 

mitigate any potential impacts on the families utilising these services.  It is therefore 
being proposed that the local authority tests the market, on behalf of the providers, to 
secure an alternative provider but on a reduced number of Flying Start commissioned 
places, to ensure best value.  The authority is also implementing some interim 
arrangements to ensure the continuation of provision in the short term and this 
includes agreeing a secondment of a childcare leader to support both providers.   

 
5.5 There are other areas of development in Flying Start areas where the numbers of 

eligible children accessing existing childcare provision is likely to be impacted over the 
coming years.  Currently there are two local authority managed fully-funded pre-
schools settings in the Gurnos; Seren Bach Pre-school at Gurnos Community Centre 
(50 places) and Busy Bees Pre-school at Penydre (24 places).  

 
In January 2022, a new Cylch Meithrin is planned to open on the Gurnos at the Goetre 
Nursery site with a view to a pre-Nursery provision setting up on the same site in 
advance of the new Welsh Medium Primary opening.  Flying Start eligible children will 
be funded to attend Cylch Meithrin Gurnos which could displace children who may 
otherwise have attended one of the other two Gurnos settings.   

  

Page 17



Another development to consider is Goetre Primary school moving to the Penydre site 
with the development of new pre-school facilities to relocate Busy Bees.  More parents 
may choose for their pre-school child to attend Busy Bees due to the ease of dropping 
school age and pre-school children off at one site which will impact on the 50 place 
setting at Gurnos Community Centre. 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 
 

6.1 We want to ensure that the childcare commissioning arrangements provide availability 
of childcare provision, support the childcare sector whilst at the same time ensuring 
value for money.  The full Childcare Sufficiency Assessment due in June 2022 will 
provide an indication of future demand versus supply of Flying Start childcare.  This 
will be used to inform the future commissioning model and it is anticipated that this 
would be applied universally across all Flying Start childcare.  

 
6.2 We want to ensure that the programme reaches as many children as possible within 

the cap limit of 1,204 set by Welsh Government.  In the context of the falling birth rate, 
consideration is being given to extending the outreach approach to include additional 
children in non-Flying Start LSOA’s.  Welsh Government guidance would suggest 
communities of interest (e.g. Gypsy traveller, women’s refuge), however significant 
work has been done regionally on sharing of health data which could allow for an 
approach which would be based on need through a vulnerability profiling exercise.   

 
6.3 We need to ensure that continuity of pre-school provision is at the very least available 

for Flying Start eligible children but preferably for all pre-school children in the 
Penydarren area.  
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 
 

7.1 The Childcare Sufficiency Assessment will be commissioned to an independent 
organisation to undertake and complete by June 2022.  It will be important that the 
action plan clearly outlines the way forward for Flying Start childcare commissioning 
model in the context of local supply and demand for provision. 

 
7.2 In response to the supply and demand assessment, work with the wider childcare 

sector to restructure the existing commissioning model ensuring this is applied 
universally across all independent settings and provides the most effective use of 
resources possible without destabilising the sector.  

 
7.3 The approach to outreach and engaging with families outside of the identified LSOAs 

be reviewed and further developed to ensure that the maximum number of children 
possible are receiving Flying Start support.  We suggest a model will come back to 
Scrutiny identifying the strengths and implications, prior to implementation.   

 
7.4 Finalising of the secondment agreement to allow a Leader from Seren Bach, the local 

authority managed Flying Start pre-school, to go on secondment to Galon Uchaf pre-
school and Plant bach Pre-school to cover maternity leave and ensure that the settings 
can remain open.  

  

Page 18



7.5 A testing the market exercise to be undertaken with a view to securing a new provider 
to deliver early years provision in the Penydarren area and should no providers 
register an interest a further paper to come back to Scrutiny on the potential 
implications for both Flying Start and the community of Penydarren. 

 
7.6 In order to mitigate the impact of falling birth rate and the new provision being 

developed, it will be important to explore alternatives open to the local authority 
managed childcare settings and how this could impact on other providers in the 
community.  This could include restructuring provision or looking at alternative 
business models.  

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO RAISING ASPIRATIONS RAISING STANDARDS 
(RARS) STRATEGY 
 

8.1 The contents of this report relate to the following RARS Themes and Goals 
 

 Theme – Partnership and Collaboration  

 Goals – Performance Management and Systems Governance – Developing the 
Education Workforce – Supporting learners health and wellbeing – Improving 
achievement and progression and developing the environment for learning.   
 

9.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 

9.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 
 

 Best start to life  
 

 
 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
PORTFOLIO LEAD  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2021/22  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme and approves, 
revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in 
planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached forward work programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 16th December 2020 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 12th July 2021 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 22



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 23



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 24



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 26



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Linked to MTCBC’s 
Wellbeing Objectives/ 
Cross Cutting Strategies 

and Plans 

Officer & Cabinet Member 
 

 (Other) 
Scrutiny Focus  

7th June 2021 

Draft Annual Work 
Programme 2020/21 

BS Best Start to Life Councillor Harvey Jones and 
Scrutiny Committee members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: -  To consider the draft 
Annual Work programme for 2021/2022 
 

Adult Community Learning 
(ACL) 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Members to consider the 
report for pre-decision prior to being presented to 
Cabinet. 
 

12th July 2021 

Update on Education Data 
(Following the Workshop on 
the 8th June 2021) 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Members to explore the 
outcomes of the workshop and to confirm next steps 
in relation to Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) for 
Education Services moving forward. 

Early Years and Flying Start 
Update 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Chris Hole – Head of 

Community Wellbeing 

Scrutiny and Challenge: To provide members with an 
update on the work being undertaken by the Local 
Authority in improving Early Years and Flying Start 
Services. 
 

13th 
September 

2021 

Asset Management Plan 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Anthony Lewis – Head of 

School Planning and 
Improvement 

 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive an update on the developments of the 
Asset Management Plan (21st Century Schools) 
projects for Learning. 
 

Report on Youth Services  
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Chris Hole – Head of 

Community Wellbeing 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - TBC 

P
age 27



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 

8th November 
2021 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 2) and the 
Corporate Self Evaluation KQ2 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
Corporate Wellbeing 

Plan (FOTF) 
 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a Local Government Education Services Inspection 
Framework, which has been aligned to the corporate 

self-evaluation framework. The Committee will 
review the findings report; and review the 
validity of the judgements made by the Chief 
Officer to secure assurance that these are robust 
and appropriately evidenced. 
 

COVID-19 Recovery & Pupil 
Wellbeing – Overview of Pupil 
standards and state of 
Wellbeing 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 
HT’s to be confirmed 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The scrutiny committee will 
receive a report on the standards of pupils since 
returning to school, as well as an update on the 
wellbeing of pupils. SW to confirm 2 HT’s to attend 
 

13th 
December 

2021 

RARS Strategy – Progress 
Update on Key Commitments 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education 
 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The scrutiny committee will 
explore and provide challenge on the progress made 
against the key commitments set out within the 
RARS Strategy. 

Business Education Training 
Partnership (BETP) Update 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Chris Hole – Head of 

Community Wellbeing 
Officers from RPP to be 

considered 
 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Committee members will 
examine and offer challenge in relation to the 
progress of the BETP action plan. 

Update Report from the 
College of Merthyr Tydfil 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The scrutiny committee will 
receive a report from the College of Merthyr Tydfil 
outlining elements of good practice as well as any 
potential areas of concern, including but not limited 

P
age 28



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

RTI Plan 
 

Chris Hole – Head of 
Community Wellbeing 

College representatives to be 
considered 

 

to the issues relating to young people that are Not in 
Education, Employment or Training (NEET). 
 

24th January 
2022 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 3) and the 
Corporate Self Evaluation KQ3 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
Corporate Wellbeing 

Plan (FOTF) 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Anthony Lewis – Head of 

School Planning and 
Improvement 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a Local Government Education Services Inspection 
Framework, which has been aligned to the corporate 

self-evaluation framework. The Committee will 
review the findings report; and review the 
validity of the judgements made by the Chief 
Officer to secure assurance that these are robust 
and appropriately evidenced. 
 

Trauma Informed Care and 
Nurture Provision 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Chris Hole – Head of 

Community Wellbeing 
HT’s to be considered 

 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - This report was requested 
by members during last year’s scrutiny committee 
cycle (2020/21). The committee will explore the work 
being undertaken by schools in relation to trauma 
informed care and nurture provision.  
Potential to hold as a workshop in one of the schools. 

Attendance in Schools 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 
– Chief Officer of Education 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The scrutiny committee will 
receive an update on attendance from early years to 
secondary schools. The committee will examine the 
work being done to improve attendance levels for all 
learners. 

7th March 
2022 

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 1) and the 
Corporate Self Evaluation KQ1 

BS Best Start to Life 
Corporate Wellbeing 

Plan (FOTF) 
 

Lisa Mytton – Leader and 
Portfolio Member; Sue Walker 

– Chief Officer of Education; 
Anthony Lewis – Head of 

School Planning and 
Improvement 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a Local Government Education Services Inspection 
Framework, which has been aligned to the corporate 

self-evaluation framework. The Committee will 
review the findings report; and review the 
validity of the judgements made by the Chief 

P
age 29



Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2021/2022 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic 
area and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Additional items to consider for Work 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

To invite / visit Heads and Chairs of Governance at the following schools :- 
 

 Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Santes Tudful 

 Pen-y-dre High School 

 Ynysowen Community Primary School 

 Visit Educated Other Than at School (EOTAS) to see what provision is available (before 8th April). 

 Visit LRB’s (Learning Resource Basis) as part of the programme of visits. 
 

Date to be 
confirmed 

Curriculum for Wales – Readiness (9th May Committee cancelled due to elections) 
CSC Challenge Framework 
 

 

Officer to secure assurance that these are robust 
and appropriately evidenced. 
 

Capita One Development 
 
 

BS Best Start to Life 
RARS Strategy 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan (FOTF) 

RTI Plan 
 

Cllr Lisa Mytton: Cabinet 
Portfolio Member / Sue 
Walker: Chief Officer – 

Learning / Emma Strand: Data 
Officer 

 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report on use of Capita One within the 
Learning Department and next steps for ongoing 
development. 
 

9th May 2022 

 

Cancelled due to May Elections 
 

P
age 30


	Agenda
	3 Update on Education Data
	Appendix 1

	4 Early Years and Flying Start Update
	5 Forward Work Programme 2021/22
	Appendix


